Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford and Airedale
Wellbeing Board to be held on Tuesday, 26 October 2021
at 9.30 am in the Council Chamber, City Hall, Bradford
Dear Member
You are requested to attend this meeting of the Bradford and Airedale Wellbeing Board.
The membership of the Board and the agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf.
Yours sincerely
City Solicitor
Notes:






This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by
contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed
except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters
covered by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity
should be respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the
meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the
meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise
with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary
arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound
recorded.
If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact
the officer named at the foot of that agenda item.
On the day of the meeting you are encouraged to wear a suitable face covering
(unless you are medically exempt) and adhere to social distancing. Staff will be at
hand to advise accordingly

From:
To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Su Booth
Phone: 07814 073884
E-Mail: susan.booth2@bradford.gov.uk

MEMBER
Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe
Councillor Sarah Ferriby
Councillor Robert Hargreaves
Councillor Abdul Jabar
Councillor Imran Khan
Councillor Alex Ross-Shaw
Councillor Sue Duffy
Kersten England
Helen Hirst
Sarah Muckle
Iain MacBeath
Brendan Brown
Dr James Thomas
Dr Sohail Abbas
Therese Patten
Helen Rushworth
Kim Shutler
Dan Greenwood
Ben Bush
Mel Pickup
Mark Douglas
Shirley Congdon
Stewart Davies
Rachel Dennis
Bishop Toby Haworth
Zahir Irani
Zulfi Karim

REPRESENTING
Leader of Bradford Metropolitan District
Council (Chair)
Healthy People and Places Portfolio Holder,
Bradford Metropolitan District Council
Shadow Healthy People and Places
Portfolio Holder, Bradford Metropolitan
District Council
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder, Bradford Metropolitan
District Council
Education, Employment and Skills Portfolio
Holder, Bradford Metropolitan District
Council
Regeneration, Planning and Transport
Portfolio Holder, Bradford Metropolitan
District Council
Children and Families Portfolio Holder,
Bradford Metropolitan District Council
Chief Executive of Bradford Metropolitan
District Council
Accountable Officer, Bradford District and
Craven Clinical Commissioning Group
Director of Public Health
Strategic Director Health and Wellbeing
Chief
Executive
of
Airedale
NHS
Foundation Trust
Bradford Districts and Craven Clinical
Commissioning Group
Deputy Chair
Chief Executive of Bradford District Care
NHS Foundation Trust
HealthWatch Bradford and District
Bradford
Assembly
representing
the
Voluntary and Community Sector
Chief Superintendent Bradford District,
West Yorkshire Police
District Commander, West Yorkshire Fire
and Rescue Service
Chief Executive of Bradford Teaching
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Strategic Director, Children's Services
Vice Chancellor, Bradford University
Chair
of
Sustainable
Development
Partnership
Group Chief Executive, Incommunities
Group LTD
Chair of Stronger Communities Partnership
Chair of Economic Recovery Board
President of Council for Mosques

Huma Nizami

Race Equality Network

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:

3.

(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

MINUTES
Recommended –
That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 August 2021 be signed
as a correct record (previously circulated).

(Su Booth - 07814 073884)
4.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Su Booth – 07814 073884)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS
5.

INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE PARTNERSHIP
ARRANGEMENTS FOR BRADFORD DISTRICT AND CRAVEN
The report of the Strategic Director of Health and Wellbeing
(Document “G”) sets out a high level overview of the plans for the
evolution of our integrated health and care partnership arrangements in
Bradford District and Craven, and across the West Yorkshire and
Harrogate Health and Care Partnership. These changes address the
requirements of the Government’s Health and Care Bill 2021.
Recommended –
That the Wellbeing Board notes the intended place based
partnership arrangements, which are proposed by the health and
care partnership; and seeks such assurances as may be
necessary from the health and care partnership.
(James Drury - 07970 479491)

6.

EQUALITIES GROUP
The report of the Chair of the Equalities Group (Document “H”)
provides Members with a high-level summary of the proposed projects
and ideas generated by the Equalities Group to date. The report also
includes an updated recommendation regarding the governance of the
Equality Group

1 - 12

Recommended 1. That the Wellbeing Board consider the recommended
projects identified in section 2 of this report.
2. That the Wellbeing Board agree to the proposed updated
governance framework for the Equality Group.
(Dermot Bolton - 01274 238440)
7.

UPDATE ON SYSTEM COMPOSITE 5 YEAR EQUALITIES PLAN:
INCREASING DIVERSITY IN SENIOR LEADERSHIP

13 - 34

The report of the Director of Human Resources (Document “I”) asks
Members of the Board to consider the work delivered on equality,
diversity and inclusion to date, the work planned and approve the
actions identified for co-delivery across our system to increase diversity
in senior leadership over the coming (next 5) years as set out in the
appended detailed slide pack (appendix 1).
Recommended That Wellbeing Board Members consider the contents of this
report and accompanying presentation slide progress update and
provide any feedback that they wish to do so to enable us to
incorporate this in our ongoing work.
(Anne Lloyd - 01274 437335)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5/

Report of the Strategic Director Health and Wellbeing to
the meeting of Wellbeing Board to be held on 26th
October 2021

G
Subject: Integrated health and care partnership arrangements for
Bradford District and Craven

Summary statement:
This paper sets out a high level overview of the plans for the evolution of our integrated
health and care partnership arrangements in Bradford District and Craven, and across the
West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership. These changes address the
requirements of the Government’s Health and Care Bill 2021.

James Drury
Partnership Programme Director

Portfolio:
Healthy People and Places

Report Contact: James Drury
Phone: 07970 479491
E-mail: james.drury2@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Health and Social Care

Page 1

1.

SUMMARY

This paper sets out a high level overview of the plans for the evolution of our integrated
health and care partnership arrangements in Bradford District and Craven, and across the
West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership. While these changes address
the requirements of the Government’s Health and Care Bill 2021, it is important to note
that this is an evolution of existing, strong and well established local partnership
arrangements.
The Health and Care Bill proposes that Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) are formally
established as statutory bodies from 1 April 2022. This will mean that Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) will be abolished with effect from 31 March 2022 and the
majority of their functions will be delivered through these new statutory bodies. The ICS
will also take on some of the functions currently undertaken by NHS England and NHS
Improvement (NHSE/I).
ICSs will be comprised of an Integrated Care Partnership and an Integrated Care Board. It
is anticipated that place based working will remain critical in the future and many of the
ICS functions will be discharged through place based partnerships. Locally, we will have a
West Yorkshire ICS with five separate places, mirroring the current CCG footprints.
National guidance is intentionally permissive, although there are an increasing number of
specific requirements relating to the formation of the ICS, in the Bill and associated NHS
guidance. There are fewer specific requirements for place based health and care
partnerships. Therefore, each local partnership, in conjunction with the ICS, will determine
the optimum local partnership arrangements. This paper provides an overview of the work
being done locally.
2.

NATIONAL AND REGIONAL DEVELOPMENTS

The Health and Care Bill, published on 6th July, reflects much of how we work in West
Yorkshire & Harrogate Health and Care Partnership (WYHHCP), as set out in our
Partnership Memorandum of Understanding (MoU). It recognises that collaborative
working produces better health and wellbeing outcomes and a more effective approach to
reducing health inequalities. We already have a mature partnership that has demonstrated
its strength in our collaborative response to COVID. Health and Wellbeing Boards and the
Partnership Board set strategic direction.
We have strong place arrangements, mature provider collaboratives and inclusive and
transparent system leadership. We start from the basis that our existing arrangements are
fundamentally sound and that we will align with what the legislation and statutory guidance
requires, rather than be driven by it.
Within Bradford District and Craven we see these changes as a positive reinforcement to
the way we have been working, most recently captured through our Act As One approach.
A statutory ICS will be made up of a statutory NHS body – the Integrated Care Board
(ICB) and a statutory joint committee - the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) - bringing
together the NHS, Local Government and partners. ICSs will be able to delegate
significantly to place partnerships and to provider collaboratives.
The ICB will be directly accountable for NHS spend and performance within the system.
As a minimum, the ICB board must include a chair and 2 non executives, the ICB Chief
1
Page 2

Executive and clinical and professional leaders, and representatives from NHS trusts,
primary care and local authorities. Others may be determined locally. Proposals for the
membership of our ICB are currently being considered, and are expected to go beyond the
minimum requirements of the Bill, reflecting the importance of place and inclusion of VCSE
sector and citizen perspectives.
The Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) will be a wider group than the ICB and will develop
an integrated care strategy to address the health, social care and public health needs of
the system. The membership and detailed functions of the ICP will be for each ICS to
decide.
Place-based arrangements between local authorities, the NHS and providers of health and
care will be left to local areas to arrange. The statutory ICB will work to support places to
integrate services and improve outcomes. Health and Wellbeing Boards will continue to
have an important role in local places overseeing the Partnership and ensuring the needs
of local residents are addressed. NHS provider organisations will remain separate
statutory bodies and retain their current structures and governance, but will be expected to
work collaboratively with partners.
A duty to co-operate will be introduced to promote collaboration across the healthcare,
public health and social care system. ICSs, NHS England and NHS providers will be
required to have regard to the ‘Triple Aim’ of better health and wellbeing for everyone,
better care for all people, and sustainable use of NHS resources.
The Integrated Care Board will take on the statutory functions from CCGs when they are
abolished at the end of March 2022. They will be responsible for strategic planning,
commissioning functions and be directly accountable for NHS spend and performance
within the system, with its chief executive becoming the accounting officer for NHS money
allocated to the NHS ICS body. The Board will be responsible for developing a plan to
meet the health needs of the population within their defined geography, developing a
capital plan for NHS providers within their health geography and securing the provision of
health services to meet the needs of the system population.
As referenced above, under the legislative changes, CCGs will be abolished at the end of
March 2022 and their functions transferred to the ICS. From April 2022, staff employed by
the CCG will be employed by the ICS. This employment arrangement does not change the
commitment that the majority of our Bradford District and Craven CCG staff will remain
embedded in the local place based partnership.
High level ICS timelines include:
By the end of October 2021:


Carry out the agreed national recruitment and selection processes for the ICS NHS
body chair and chief executive.



Draft proposed ICS operating model and governance arrangements, in line with the
NHS England and NHS Improvement model constitution and guidance.



Begin due diligence planning.

By the end of December 2021:


Confirm designate appointments to ICS NHS body finance director, medical director
and director of nursing roles and other board and senior level roles
2
Page 3



ICS NHS bodies and ICS Partnerships to be ready to operate in shadow form.



Engagement on local ICS Constitution and governance arrangements for ICS NHS



body and ICS Partnership.

By the end of March 2022:


Confirm designate appointments to any remaining senior ICS roles.



Complete due diligence and preparations for staff and property (assets and
liabilities, including contracts).



Submit the ICS constitution for approval and agree the 2022/23 ICS MoU with NHS
England and NHS Improvement.

From April 1st 2022:


Establish new ICS NHS body; with staff and property (assets and liabilities)
transferred and boards in place.

A diagram of the draft proposed ICS governance arrangements is shown at Appendix C
Locally, as based on our current WYHHCP arrangements, subsidiarity will continue to be
very important, with places continuing to take a major role in our partnership approach.
The next section of the report sets out our approach to the further development of our
place based partnership for Bradford District and Craven.

3.

BRADFORD DISTRICT AND CRAVEN DEVELOPMENTS

Within Bradford District and Craven we have well established health and care partnership
arrangements. The Wellbeing Board sets the overall direction, and coordinates action
between each of our strategic partnerships to maximise our impact on all the factors that
influence our social, economic, and environmental wellbeing. The Health and Care
Executive Board is one of our strategic partnerships and leads the coordinated planning
and delivery of our local health and care system, via our Bradford District and Craven
Health and Care Partnership.
Our Bradford District and Craven Health and Care Partnership arrangements already
include;


shared system committees focused on quality, and finance and performance



a clinical forum ensuring clinical and professional views are heard, and clinical
leadership is embedded in all parts of our partnership



Coordinated action on the critical enabling functions of our health and care system
– our workforce, our use of technology, data, and our physical estate.



Priority change programmes addressing access to care, mental health, children’s
health and wellbeing and the illnesses which have the greatest impacts on the lives
of people in our District.

A diagram of our existing partnership arrangements is shown at Appendix A
Our current partnership arrangements are underpinned by the Strategic Partnering
Agreement (SPA), which documents the way we work together, how we reach decisions
3
Page 4

collectively, and confirms our shared ambition. The SPA was most recently reviewed and
agreed via each organisation’s formal decision making arrangements in March 2021.
This Autumn, we will update the SPA again to reflect the proposed partnership
governance and decision making arrangements, ensuring alignment with the constitution
of the West Yorkshire Integrated Care Board (ICB), and preparing for the anticipated
changes in responsibility from the CCG to the ICB.
Our Partnership has long been an inclusive one, with direct participation in decision
making groups by the voluntary, community, and social enterprise sector, the independent
care sector, primary care, alongside large NHS and local government organisations. As
we continue to develop our partnership, we are committed to ensuring we retain this
breadth, and add to it, particularly to strengthen the voice of people who use health and
care services. Our approach to this will be to connect with existing arrangements for public
voice and participation, and to pay particular attention to diversity and inclusion.
It is also important that decision making in our partnership is open and transparent. We will
ensure that meetings of the board of our local health and care partnership are held in
public, and we will develop ways of working such as publishing papers in advance and
potentially allowing public questions. All our BDCHCP decision making will of course
continue to work with local Overview and Scrutiny Committee arrangements as we do
now. This is in addition to any Joint Overview and Scrutiny arrangements which local
authorities enter into with regards to the West Yorkshire ICS.
The majority of decision making for Bradford District and Craven will be retained locally,
with only those matters which we agree to be best discharged once for West Yorkshire
being agreed by the ICB, in line with the subsidiarity principle which has underpinned the
success of our ICS since its inception. To achieve this, we must demonstrate effective
leadership, and governance arrangements for our Bradford District and Craven Health and
Care Partnership.
Our proposed leadership arrangements are based upon the principles of distributed
leadership as set out in our SPA. Each place based partnership must have arrangements
which provide strategic leadership of place and ensure clear and aligned leadership and
line management of place-based staff. Place based leadership arrangements need clear
accountability and must offer transparency and management of conflicts of interest. Within
Bradford District and Craven Health and Care Partnership we have chosen to appoint a
Health and Care Lead for place who will not be employed full time by the ICS, but is
employed by one of our local partner organisations. This is in line with our approach to
place based leadership for the past three years, with the chief executives of all three local
Foundation Trusts already having taken on additional system leadership responsibilities.
We believe this approach offers the greatest fidelity to the principles of distributed
leadership, with all members of the team taking collective responsibility, and putting the
needs of the population of Bradford District and Craven first, above organisational
interests.
The Executive Board reached a unanimous view that Mel Pickup, Chief Executive of
Bradford Teaching Hospitals NHS FT would be put forward as Place Leader. Our
Partnership is explicit that this is a personal leadership position and not part of the Chief
Executive of BTHFT role; and that the role is one of ‘system convenor’ and does not have
direct authority or accountability for the individual organisations in place. Our Reference
Group of Trust Chairs and Elected Members has also endorsed this recommendation. The
formal appointment of Mel as our place based lead is subject to further process
4
Page 5

undertaken with the ICB, and will follow the appointment process for the ICB chief
executive.
We are currently clarifying the system leadership roles of the other members of the
Executive Board, and the supporting arrangements to ensure that all executives are able
to deliver on their system leadership responsibilities, and that the BDC focused team
whose employment will be held by the ICB have clarity of their leadership and line
management arrangements. We are also establishing formal reviews over the next two
years, to ensure we have the opportunity to improve our place based leadership and
delivery arrangements as we learn through implementation.
Our proposed governance arrangements will be built upon the existing, strong, place
based health and care partnership arrangements, as set out earlier in this paper. There
will be a need to develop these further to enable decisions to be formally taken at place,
following the end of the CCGs.
The Health and Care Bill and related guidance sets out a number of legal options for the
formation of such place based partnership boards. Our governance teams, supported by
professional legal advisors have evaluated the options and agreed with the Executive
Board that the best way to establish our local Health and Care Board in readiness for April
2022 will be as a Committee of the Integrated Care Board. This is an initial proposal,
which can be established relatively easily, but does not preclude the further development
of the legal form for the partnership board, if required, over the next few years. For
example, to create a joint committee of local statutory bodies.
It is noted that the assessment of relative benefits of each of the governance options is
based upon the current draft of the Health and Care Bill, and this may of course be revised
as a result of Parliamentary process, prior to being enacted as legislation.
The preferred option offers the following advantages:


Ability to include a range of non-statutory partners as board members. Supporting
our aim to retain a broad partnership and to increase participation in decision
making.



Ability to include in scope of the Board, any element of the responsibilities of the
ICB which relate to Bradford District and Craven, including primary care. (All subject
to agreement with the ICB).



Easier and faster to establish than a joint committee.

All the potential options would retain close links to the Wellbeing Board, and the Health
and Care Bill makes provision to ensure that the plans of the ICB and any place based
partnerships within it, are responsive to the needs of local people as indicated by the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment and joint strategies, such as our District Plan in Bradford
District. The Bill also provides for annual reports on delivery to be made to the Wellbeing
Board, and annual review by NHS England.
Our partnership also includes Craven District Council and North Yorkshire County Council.
We are mindful of the process of local government reform which is underway in North
Yorkshire, and we will continue to work with colleagues from Craven and North Yorkshire
to ensure continued participation and connectivity to local government decision making,
including the North Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Board.
Programme delivery arrangements have been established to support the leadership and
5
Page 6

governance as set out above. We have a Programme Board which meets every two
weeks and reports regularly to our Executive Board. Work is underway through work
streams to take forward the key elements of our partnership development. These are:
Assurance; Citizen engagement; Clinical and professional leadership; Collaborative
commissioning; Communications and engagement; Digital and data; Governance;
Inequalities alliance; Leadership and behaviours; Operational and financial planning;
Quality and performance; and Vision and strategy.
In addition to these areas a separate programme has been established to oversee the
CCG transition. This programme will oversee the close down of the CCG and the safe
transition of staff and functions to the ICS. The CCG transition programme works closely
with the partnership development programme, including through attendance at the
programme board to facilitate effective collaboration and management of dependencies.
Both the CCG transition and place based partnership programmes, work closely with
parallel streams of activity which are planning and implementing new ways of working for
the West Yorkshire ICS. We are also working supportively with each of the other places in
West Yorkshire as they develop their own local partnership arrangements. To assist each
of us in creating compatible and high quality partnership arrangements, we are using a
shared Partnership Development Framework to guide our development plans, and allow
us to focus attention as required on specific aspects of our partnership.
An initial self-assessment using the partnership development framework will soon be
available. We will then seek to engage widely to gain a broad range of perspectives,
providing a rich analysis of our partnership development needs. We see this as an
ongoing area of activity, revisiting the self-assessment periodically to check progress.
Work is progressing with all the activities described above. There will be further
engagement, including with Wellbeing Board in relation to the ICS Constitution, and local
partnership arrangements, including the SPA. We anticipate the first meeting of our placebased Health and Care Partnership Board in ‘shadow form’ in November, in preparation
for new statutory arrangements from April 2022.

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

There is no change to the NHS allocation to the Bradford District and Craven system as a
direct result of the changes outlined. Allocations are set according to national formulae
each year. The running costs of the CCG will continue to be available to support the
system. This includes support provided once as an ICS as well as through each place
partnership.
5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

As part of our place based partnership arrangements, the governance structure is being
revised to ensure our partnership is able to take on the delegated responsibilities from the
Integrated Care Board of our ICS. The draft governance structure can be seen in
Appendix B
We have established a local system strategic risk register which is produced for the Health
and Care Executive Board to support collective ownership and response of our
6
Page 7

partnership. It highlights seven themes: quality and safety; workforce; finance; digital;
system development; regulation; and learning.

6.

RECOMMENDATIONS



That the Wellbeing Board notes the intended place based partnership
arrangements, which are proposed by the health and care partnership; and seeks
such assurances as may be necessary from the health and care partnership.

7.

APPENDICES

 Appendix A - Existing Bradford District and Craven Health and Care Partnership
governance

 Appendix B – Draft proposed Bradford District and Craven Health and Care
Partnership governance
7
Page 8

 Appendix C – Draft proposed West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care
Partnership governance

8
Page 9

8.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS



None

9
Page 10

Agenda Item 6/

Report of the Chair of the Equalities Group to the
meeting of the Wellbeing Board to be held on 26
October 2021.

H
Subject:
The Equality Group (EG) has been working together over the last 6 months to
develop initiatives to tackle inequalities across the District.

Summary statement:
This paper provides a high-level summary of the proposed projects and ideas
generated by the Equalities Group to date. This paper also includes an updated
recommendation regarding the governance of the Equality Group.
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY:
The Equalities Group exists to address and support equality objectives. The ideas
presented within therefore align closely with the objectives, and therefore an equality
impact assessment is not required at this stage.

Professor Udy Arichbong
PVC, Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

Portfolio: N/A

Report Contact: Dermot Bolton,
Programme Manager, University of
Bradford

Overview & Scrutiny Area: N/A

Phone: (01274) 238440
E-mail: djbolton@bradford.ac.uk

Page 11

1.

SUMMARY

The Equalities Group was formed to support the Wellbeing Board in implementing its
commitment to equalities. The chair, Professor Udy Archibong, decided to take the
approach of forming a group of cross sector EDI professionals to collectively work on
initiatives across the Place. Bradford Council’s Equality objectives provided the starting
point and work was undertaken in subgroups to come up with clear proposals. The ideas
are presented within the main section of the report as follows:


Various leadership related ideas for the HRD led group to consider



A district wide staff induction programme



A coordinated recruitment campaign/movement



A positive action toolkit



A Diversity Exchange web portal



Diversity Exchange community hubs



An EDI peer review framework, and collaborative benchmarking exercise

These proposals would do much to address the inconsistencies around EDI based
practice across the public and third sector in Bradford District and Craven. They will
provide a significantly more solid basis for effective working, best practice, and a
consistent approach to ensuring that equality diversity and inclusion is at the core of our
work in Bradford District and Craven.
2.

BACKGROUND

Background
The Equalities Group was first convened in November 2020 to ensure that all the Strategic
partnerships are actively addressing Equalities in their work and support the WBB in
implementing its commitment to Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. This was also a
reflection of calls by community groups for action following significant events in 2020, such
as the murder of George Floyd and the Black Lives Matter Movement as well as the
impact of the Covid pandemic on deepening health inequalities across the Place.
Approach
The group is chaired by Professor Udy Archibong of the University of Bradford and the
membership of the Group is primarily EDI professionals from public sector, third sector
and business. Professor Archibong decided to proceed in working with professionals who
already had a good understanding of the EDI issues to ensure that the limited time could
be spent on discussing and developing practical solutions. The EDI professionals also
bring a level of experience and knowledge of previous initiatives, both those that have
been positive and those that have ultimately failed to deliver meaningful change.
Additionally, the intention has always been to engage and work with a wider group to
include community perspectives in order to further develop the proposals of the Group.
On convening, the group agreed to frame its work around the thematic areas aligned to
the equality objectives of the Local Authority Equality Plan. Four work streams were
established addressing: Leadership, Workforce, Community and Service Delivery and
Page 12

Design. Each work stream was assigned a Lead who voluntarily took on the role to steer
sub-groups.
The key guiding principle for the working groups has been that proposed interventions
should be:


Sustainable



Transformative



Dismantling



Structural



Intersectional

The four areas and their definitions were analysed and amended, and these sub-groups
then met separately to produce ideas that will be worked up into Action Plans. Workshop
sessions have also been undertaken to include a wider group and promote a creative codesign approach.
3.
Work stream 1 - Leadership
Early in the process the Equalities Group realised that there was a significant crossover
with the work being undertaken by the HRD group on increasing diversity in senior
leadership. As that work was being developed the Equalities Group came together to
consider a range of ideas that could be adopted to progress the leadership work stream
and to discuss and agree alignment and governance across the EG and HRD’s work.
Several group meetings and workshops were undertaken to explore these ideas, their
rationale and the benefits. These ideas include:


Create cross sector development opportunities (like the ICS HP Fellowships)



Create volunteering opportunities including charity Boards (can organisations
release their staff to do this during work time?)



Review dated recruitment and interview processes and consider other ways to
enable people to be their best (mock interviews shown to work well)



Create one central place where people can find and be matched to development
opportunities



Establishment of a Bradford Leadership Scholarship that we can collectively sign
up to



Map our current coaching and mentoring programmes, identify and address
gaps, build on them, and incorporate sponsorship



Establish some form of charter mark or membership for organisations to sign up to
who will embed the principles/skills in their organisation/curriculum (this will require
some resource)

Some of these ideas can be taken up or included in other Equalities Group proposals, or
they could be incorporated into the One Workforce programme. However, it is felt that
ownership of the leadership work in its entirety (EG and HRD) should sit within the EG and
led by Anne Lloyd, Director of Human Resources at Bradford Council. This is to ensure
there is no duplication and for implementation reasons, and to ensure alignment across
Page 13

initiatives and the leadership and workforce work streams. The HRD network will be
submitting a separate presentation to the Wellbeing Board outlining progress against this
work stream.

Consultation
Consultation will take place with existing staff from across the Place, staff networks, and
key partnerships.

4.

Work stream 2 - Workforce

This work stream has been led by Kez Hayat from Bradford Teaching Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust with support from the Equalities Group and the One Workforce
programme. The key recommendations are:


A district wide staff induction programme covering the theme of ‘Inclusion’ should
be developed and adopted by Bradford public sector organisations. In order to
prepare our workforce to work in both individual organisations and the Bradford
Place, and to drive our aspirations of being employers of choice. Equality, Diversity
and Inclusion being the main cross cutting theme in how we do this.



A coordinated district wide recruitment campaign/movement to create and instil a
sense of belonging in our district. It will focus on creating compassionate and
inclusive cultures where everyone feels they belong, have a voice and feel
empowered to make a difference. This will be a coordinated approach across the
Place to both “grow our own” and attract new diverse talent to benefit the district as
a whole and close the gap between skills and jobs.



A universal positive action toolkit to help managers and leaders apply positive
action approaches to recruitment, especially for senior management roles, across
the district. This will also enable and support all staff and candidates to better
understand the benefits of positive action.

Detailed project plans will be developed which will include resource requirements.

5.
Work stream 3 - Community
This work stream is led by Janet Ford from CNET with input from a wide range of
colleagues, with the voluntary sector particularly well represented.
Aims and Objectives
The proposal it to develop a cross sector “Diversity Exchange” web-based portal to
enable stakeholders to pool and share intelligence, resources, information and insight
relating to equality, diversity and inclusion. The aim of the “Diversity Exchange” is to join
Page 14

the dots so that equality focused practice is consistent and embedded across the public,
private and VCSE sectors. The Diversity Exchange could be an overarching one-stopcross sector-shop acting as a central arena for the collation of our other work stream
initiatives. The portal will also be used as an arena for dispelling myths and
misinformation.
The following are examples of some of the key functions and content of the proposed
Diversity Exchange portal:
i.

Deposit and retrieve useful information, for example:
 Library of research (links contributed by partners)
 Policy and practice models for groups and organisations such as recruitment,
governance, volunteer recruitment and support
 Training resources
 Bradford for Everyone shared values
 Funding opportunities
 Equality Impact assessment information and tools
 Opportunities for community representation and collaboration
 Opportunities for co-design and delivery
 Campaigns

ii.

Inclusive Workforce Toolkit and tutorial (Bradford for Everyone, Grant Thornton)

iii.

Calendar of activities (cultural celebrations, awareness and remembrance
days/weeks/months e.g., Black History Month, Disability History Month, Autism day,
religious festivals etc.

iv.

Tools and resources that incorporate creativity as an effective way to engage
people to encourage and enable non-verbal expression of feelings, opinions,
circumstances, lived experience, access barriers etc.

v.

Tools, resources and information developed by the other work streams within the
Equalities Group initiative e.g., Leadership, Workforce and Service Design and
Delivery.

An extension to the proposal is to develop physical Diversity Exchange Community
hubs, predominantly based in community centres and places where key issues affecting
the most marginalised communities are raised daily. For example, Equalities Together,
Race Equality Network, Highfield Women’s Centre (Keighley), Artworks, HALE, Bradford
Women’s Forum. The hubs would be places for celebrations of diversity (history, art,
culture, events etc.) and places to conduct user led consultation and collaboration events
for providers to learn from and listen to the community as part of a co-design process.
Benefits
This proposal has a number of benefits that should be realised over a five-year period.
Immediate benefits include:
 Improved communication between public sector and VCS.
 A joined-up district wide approach to tackling inequalities
 Increased opportunities for learning between organisations
Page 15

Within 2 years we would expect to see:
 New and improved cross sector relationships
 Recognised and trusted groups and organisations who can engage, consult and
collaborate with grass-root communities
Within 5 years we expect
 The Diversity Exchange will contribute to pooling the tools, information and
resources together in a one-stop-shop
 We will have moved considerably towards becoming an inclusive, fair and
accessible Bradford
 Working together and in partnership we will achieve the outcomes which began
as ideas and aspirations at the start of our journey within the Equalities Group
project
Consultation
Should the concept be approved as a potential overarching umbrella project, further
consultation and co-design will be required to establish how the theory will work in
practice. For example:





Who will use the Diversity Exchange and what will they require from it
How it can be made accessible and easy to navigate
How can it become a sustainable district wide asset
What would be the main headings, for example, training, resources, research,
commissioned programmes, projects, strategies, national/local policy etc?

The consultation methods would include focus groups, questionnaires and meetings.
Community groups, VCS organisations, housing, education, health, police, council
workforce and other key agencies will be asked to contribute their thoughts and outline
their requirements of the exchange.

6.
Work stream 4 - Service Design and Delivery
The proposal recognises that there is a lot of good EDI practice in existence within local
organisations. The proposal is to set up a peer review framework as part of the Diversity
Exchange, a supportive and collaborative benchmarking exercise will examine how well
this practice is currently embedded. This will provide:


Support and scrutiny to organisations



An arena for positive challenge



Active sharing of best practice



Identification of gaps and actions for improvement

The framework combines evaluation and accountability with questions around whether
systems and processes are being applied and followed as well as the quality of monitoring.
It is not an audit tool, but an appreciative enquiry of current practice. The framework would
be known as the ‘Bradford Standard’ or the ‘Bradford Approach’. This peer review model
Page 16

would include, but not be limited to:
1. Service user perspectives
2. Client engagement (including digital)
3. Service users accessing services, including accessibility of buildings
4. Recruitment and selection - cross link to other project strands
5. EDI Data collected –what is collected and how is evaluation process built in.
6. Equality Impact Assessment: does this happen and is it effective and what were
the outcomes. Scope for working towards a shared methodology.
7. Digital transformation (post Covid) (and the impact on accessibility for different
groups)
8. How is EDI embedded in procurement and commissioning?
9. Policies and implementation of those in practice - is EDI effectively included?
The proposal would be delivered in three stages, over a period to be defined based on the
resource available to undertake the work.


Stage 1: Map existing best practices - across organisations in the District



Stage 2: Devise a benchmark tool by reviewing the existing practices and findings.
Develop an implementation plan that takes into account the resources and
engagement required to establish the benchmark tool across the Place.



Stage 3: Consult on the draft benchmark tool, test and learn by piloting with a
sample of organisations.



Stage 4: Market and roll out the benchmarking tool across the partnership.

This proposal has a number of benefits that should be realised over a five-year period.
Immediate benefits include:
 Bringing a variety of organisations together to share knowledge and experience of
EDI


breaking down of communication and other barriers between sectors



Easier access to and understanding of EDI standards



Buddying of organisations to continue ongoing support and learning



Peer support across EDI leads within the place.

Within 2 years we would expect to see:
 Peer review being introduced as a standard practice across sectors and
organisations


Sharing of good practices across the District



Strengthened partnerships across the District through collaborative appreciative
enquiry



Consistent monitoring of data to assess inclusive and accessible service delivery
and design approaches
Page 17



Accountability, transparency of monitoring of service delivery and design

Within 5 years we expect
 Increased consistency in practices across the system.

7.



Synergy and whole system working



Creation of more inclusive and accessible services across the District



Annual peer review of EDI as standard within local authority, NHS & VCS



Evaluation and potential for the Bradford Approach/Standard as it is successfully
adopted by other Councils/areas



Increased compliance and furthering of the Equality Act across the District.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Performance
Performance frameworks for the projects above are still in the process of being developed,
it is proposed that further work is undertaken with the Wellbeing Executive Group to
finalise these.
Governance
It is proposed that further discussions regarding resource requirement for the projects
above and oversight of the work of the Equality Group is provided through the Wellbeing
Executive Group. Annual updates will be provided to the Wellbeing Board meeting on the
progress and performance of the Equality Group.
8.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

This document has presented the ideas generated by the Equalities Group. Full financial
and resource requirements will be considered during the development of the delivery
plans. It is not expected that the ideas presented in this paper will have significant financial
requirements, although there will be some additional development and resource costs.
Project plans will be presented to the Wellbeing Executive Group which will detail resource
requirements..
9.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

Full delivery plans are close to completion and will include a full analysis of risk. We
recommend that the Equality Group provide regular updates to the Wellbeing Executive
who will provide oversight of the delivery of projects. Annual reports will be provided to the
Wellbeing Board on progress against our objectives.

10.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

No legal issues are anticipated at this stage.

Page 18

11.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

11.1

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

These proposals have been drawn up with sustainability for EDI in mind, they should
therefore meet sustainability objectives. Further assurance will be sought from the relevant
policy officer on the finished action plans.
11.2

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS

There are no anticipated negative greenhouse gas emissions impacts with the proposals.
The Environment & Climate Change Manager will be contacted for further guidance on the
finished action plans.
11.3

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

Overall the proposals should provide a net benefit to community safety as they are
designed to support and promote community cohesion.
11.4

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

As above these proposals compliment and support human rights act aims.
11.5

TRADE UNION

None
11.6

WARD IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable
11.7

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)

Not applicable
11.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING

Not applicable
11.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT

Not applicable
12.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS



None

13.

OPTIONS
Page 19



The Equalities Group set out to bring about transformational change on the issues
of equalities across the District. The group has now developed a number of
proposed projects at scale to support this ambition. The organisations that make up
the Wellbeing Board have been well represented in the Equalities Group and the
Group would now like the Wellbeing Board to ratify the project concepts. Further
papers (action plans) outlining the operational delivery of the proposals are in
development and will be shared with the SCG at a later date.

14.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Recommended That the Wellbeing Board consider the recommended projects identified in section 2
of this report.
That the Wellbeing Board agree to the proposed updated governance framework
for the Equality Group.

15.

APPENDICES



Appendix A: List of members for the Equality Group.

16.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS



None

Page 20

Appendix A: List of members for the Equality Group.
This list includes all members of the main Equalities Group. Some members were able to
attend and be involved more regularly than others. The group terms of reference allowed
members to send substitutes to cover meetings they were unable to attend.
Membership
Prof Udy Archibong (Chair)
Kez Hayat
Lynne Carter
Lisa Wright
Lynsey Nicholson
Anne Lloyd
Rachel Davis
Penny Wangari-Jones
Mark Nicholson
Janet Ford
Kim Shutler
Bash Anwar
Andy Flynn
Angela McVay
Fran Innes
Alison Leech
Charles Dacres
Zahra Niazi
Richard Emmott

University of Bradford
Bradford Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Bradford District and Craven CCG
Bradford District Care Foundation Trust
Airedale NHS Foundation Trust
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council
Racial Just Network / VCS assembly
Equality Together / VCS assembly
CNET / VCS assembly
The Cellar Trust / VCS Assembly
West Yorkshire Police Service
West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service
Department for Work & Pensions
Department for Work & Pensions
InCommunities
Bradford Hate Crime Alliance
Bradford for Everyone
Yorkshire Water

In attendance
Dermot Bolton
James Drury

Programme manager, University of Bradford
Programme Director ICP Board

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7/

Report of the Director of Human Resources to the
meeting of Wellbeing Board to be held on 26 October
2021

I
Subject:
Update on system composite 5 year equalities plan: increasing diversity
in senior leadership
Summary statement:
Members of the board are asked to consider the work delivered on equality, diversity and
inclusion to date, the work planned and approve the actions identified for co-delivery
across our system to increase diversity in senior leadership over the coming (next 5) years
as set out in the accompanying detailed slide pack.
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY:
This work has been scoped in such a way to connect across our system and to address
inequality and achieve greater diversity in our workforce senior leadership.
The work presented contributes to the Council’s Equality Objectives and our system
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion work across leadership and workforce strands.

Cllr Susan Hinchliffe
Leader

Portfolio:
Corporate

Report Contact: Anne Lloyd
Director of Human Resources

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Phone: 01274 437335
E-mail: anne.lloyd@bradford.gov.uk

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny

Page 23

1.

SUMMARY



Human Resources Directors across our Public Sector organisations have come
together to develop our 5 year system composite plan to increase diversity in senior
leadership.



Delivery of this plan involves developing, leading and sustaining a system where
people work for us because of our positive reputation and they are reflective of the
population we serve. We champion and nurture an inclusive culture which
recognises and embraces difference at all levels, is compassionate and safe, and
one in which lived experience matches the aspirations for our culture.



Our Public Sector organisations are embedded in our district and we play an active
part in district economic development. We work in partnership across the system to
promote public service careers and a total reward offer which values and
recognises the contributions our people make.



Delivering our vision involves a cultural and organisational development
programme. Through this work, we will increase diversity in senior leadership
across our system organisations.



Members of the board were asked to consider and approve the actions identified for
co-delivery across our system to increase diversity in senior leadership over the
coming (next 5) years as set out in the report and presentation pack at the
Wellbeing Board meeting of 15 June 2021.



This work is aligned with the Equalities Group, which formed to support the
Wellbeing Board in implementing its commitment to tackling inequalities. The
Equalities Group is chaired by Professor Udy Archibong, with membership from a
number cross sector organisations across the Place. It is also aligned with equality,
diversity and inclusion work across the Health and Social Care system.

2.

BACKGROUND



We are unanimously committed to inclusivity regardless of background, recognising
that the rates of under representations varies across our system. We have made
significant progress and achieved a great deal over recent years. However, we
recognise that we are not where we want to be, and there is more to achieve. We
are committed to accelerating progress and the approach. Following discussion at
Strategic Coordination Group and Wellbeing Board, Human Resources Directors
took the lead on this system wide work in early 2021.



We have taken an evidence based approach to this work and linked in with
established system wide equality, diversity and inclusion groups. Given the scope
of our work we;
o Developed common outcomes around designing and implementing a specific
targeted and focus approach to black, Asian and minority ethnic recruitment
to senior posts and the development of a talent pipeline
Page 24

o Are using that as a model for increasing representation across all groups
o Continue to deliver individual organisation outcomes, recognising that work
on common outcomes, might in areas, accelerate individual organisations
progress against their plans


The report to the board of 15 June 2021 set out the context, vision, our
achievements to date, a baseline of data, the actions, shared outcomes and the
next steps in order to realise our ambition and recommended that Wellbeing Board
Members approved the actions identified for delivery in the report:



Over the next 6 – 12 months;
o Continue with and scale up our shared mentoring and coaching platforms.
Promote and support the High Potential 2 Fellowship in terms of offering high
quality placement opportunities and senior coaching and mentoring across
our system.
o Creating and sustaining connectivity through shared system networks,
ongoing collaboration and a shared approach to recruitment panels.
o Encouraging new entrants into our sector; proactively engaging those who
are furthest from work, particularly the long term and recently unemployed
and targeted recruitment with our black, Asian and minority ethnic
communities through our inclusive community recruitment project.
o Map and align EDI governance across the system.

Over the next 1 – 4 years;
o Create and embed inclusive, compassionate and safe cultures consistently.
Develop and retain talent within and across Place, identifying and developing
career pathways, development opportunities and passporting arrangements
across organisations and sectors.
o Succession plans in place that identify future talent and diverse talent
pipelines.
o Collaborate on system leadership and management development training –
culture, values, behaviours and kindness.
o Develop work on integrated career pathways into senior roles, e.g. through
secondments, recruitment, and/or integrated senior leadership teams


The decision notice from the Wellbeing Board meeting of 15 June 2021 specified
that:
o consideration be given to jointly funding a dedicated post to coordinate and
lead on the work to increase diversity in senior leadership in the Public
Sector which would involve contribution from all partners.
o A further update is received in 6 months’ time to the Board outlining progress
of the work, providing a comparative data analysis and should also include
targets.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS



The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion space across our system is active and
collaborative, the breadth of stakeholder groups is an expression of district wide
commitment. We continue to be mindful that the more groups there are increases
the pressure on resources and the need for alignment. It also increases our
Page 25

opportunity to maximise delivery of joint outcomes.
4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL



Partners agreed at the 15 June 2021 Wellbeing Board meeting to jointly fund a
system wide EDI post to support this important work. It is likely that connected work
across the system will require investment to deliver initiatives over the short to
medium term. It is proposed that the jointly funded system wide EDI resource is
considered after other ways of identifying the focused resource needed is
considered and that this resource in principle works across the EG work streams to
support delivery of this work.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
It was recommended at the 15 June 2021 Wellbeing Board that governance for
delivery of this work falls within the system wide Equalities Group under the
leadership of Professor Udy Archibong (leadership and workforce strands) and has
a line into the Integrated Programme Board, and Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Work stream under the leadership of Pat Campbell, to ensure this work is
connected, aligned and that HRDs maintain our involvement with clear lines of
sight.
During the summer 2021 further discussions across Place EDI leads have taken
place and it has been agreed that given the synergies, the work on the 5 year
system composite plan to increase diversity in senior leadership is brought into the
Leadership work stream of the EG, with Anne Lloyd, Director of Human Resources
at Bradford Council leading this work stream.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL



No legal issues arise at this stage.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS



None arising from this report.

7.2

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS



N/A

7.3

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS



None arising from this report.

7.4

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
Page 26



None arising from this report.

7.5

TRADE UNION



Trade unions are engaged with workforce matters, are supportive of, and involved
in activities and initiatives that drive and deliver equality, diversity and inclusion.

7.6

WARD IMPLICATIONS



None arising from this report.

7.7

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)



N/A.

7.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
None arising from this report.

7.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
There are no data protection or information security matters arising from the
proposals. The benchmark data and information is published by each organisation
and data is in the public domain.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS



None.

9.

OPTIONS



A range of options were considered as part of this work and as this work evolved.
The proposal therefore, takes account of wide and varied socialisation since
February 2021. While there is a lot to do, we need to focus on a few key priorities,
spend time on them, to do them well to deliver sustainable change, rather than set
out to do too many things at once.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS



It is recommended that Wellbeing Board Members consider the contents of this
report and accompanying presentation slide progress update and provide any
feedback that they wish to do so to enable us to incorporate this in our ongoing
work.

11.

APPENDICES



Composite 5 year Equalities Plan – Progress Update. A slide pack that details the
progress of the work to deliver increased diversity in senior leadership over the next
Page 27

5 years.
12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS



The report presentation pack from the 15 June 2021 Wellbeing Board.

Page 28

Doc I A

Bradford District Wellbeing Board:
Progress update - Our system composite 5 Year Equalities
Plan
Page 29

26 October 2021

Our Public Sector partnerships

Page 30

Background
• There has been District wide agreement to develop a Bradford public sector plan to
increase diversity in senior leadership over the next 5 years

Page 31

• Our work is aligned with the Equalities Group, which formed to support the Wellbeing
Board in implementing its commitment to tackling inequalities. The Equalities Group is
chaired and led by Professor Udy Archibong, with membership from a number of cross
sector organisations across the Place. It is also aligned with equality, diversity and
inclusion work across the Health and Social Care system
• The report to Wellbeing Board of 15 June 2021 set out the context, vision, our
achievements to date, a baseline of data, the actions, shared outcomes and the next
steps in order to realise our ambition
• At the Wellbeing Board meeting of 15 June 2021 it was decided that:
• Consideration be given to jointly funding a dedicated post to coordinate and lead on
the work to increase diversity in senior leadership in the Public Sector which would
involve contribution from all partners
• A further update is received in 6 months’ time to the Board outlining progress of the
work, providing a comparative data analysis and should also include targets

Our Data
• We have achieved increased diversity across our senior leadership over recent years,
and have greater workforce diversity than our regional comparator organisations and also
nationally. Here are some *examples we reported at the June board:
• District Health organisations non-medical workforce report diversity in senior
leadership (Band 8a and above, Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic representation)
ranges from 8.9% - 37.1%, and for Clinical non-medical workforce ranges from 4.1% 12.3% across Health organisations
Page 32

• West Yorkshire Police report diversity in senior leadership (Superintendent to ACPO,
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic representation) at 25.6%
• Bradford Council report diversity in senior leadership (Top paid 5% of workforce that
are Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) as 18.2%
• We recognise there is more to do to be fully inclusive and this requires engagement,
understanding, leadership role models to drive change
* we all define senior leaders in slightly different ways and report to different timelines,
this and further baseline data was provided in Appendix B of the 14 June 2021 report
(grade/remuneration levels understandably differ)

National Public Sector Data – focus ethnicity
• Since baselining and reporting on our local data, 2020 data has been published:
• The 2020 NHS Workforce Race Equality Standard reports that the NHS has long been
the largest employer of Black, Asian and minority ethnic people in England and overall
racial diversity has increased further in recent years: from 17.7% in 2016 to 19.7% in
2019, and a further rise to 21% of the workforce in 2020. Though there is significant
deterioration in Bands 7 to VSM
Page 33

• There was also a very slight increase in the proportion of Black, Asian and minority ethnic
staff at Very Senior Manager (VSM) level in 2020 (6.8% up from 6.5%) though the
increase has been more meaningful in the longer-term on this measure: an overall
increase of 42% from 2016-2020. It should be noted that levels of representation were a
very low proportion of all VSM staff in 2016: only 5.4%
• District Health organisations have seen increases in clinical workforce diversity in senior
leadership in 2020 WRES compared to 2019 WRES (Band 8a and above, Black, Asian
and minority ethnic representation in clinical workforce) from 4.1% to 4.9% at ANFT, and
from 12.3% to 17.5% at BTHFT

National Public Sector Data – focus ethnicity
• Gov.UK (published 29 January 2021) National Police data: At the end of March 2020,
92.7% of police officers were White and 7.3% were from Asian, Black, Mixed and Other
ethnic backgrounds
• West Yorkshire Police representation from Asian, Black, Mixed and Other ethnic
backgrounds is 6.1%
Page 34

• 4.3% of senior officers were from the Asian, Black, Mixed and Other ethnic groups
combined, compared with 2.8% in 2007. Between 2007 and 2020, the percentage of
police officers from every ethnic minority group went up – the biggest increase was for
Asian police officers (from 1.5 to 3.1%)
• West Yorkshire Police were ranked 20th in the top 50 Inclusive Companies 2020/21
• Gov.UK (published 29 March 2021) Fire and Rescue Services data: Overall, the
percentage of fire and rescue services staff (including support staff) from Asian, Black,
Mixed and Other backgrounds went up from 4.0% in 2011 to 5.0% in 2020
• WYFRS representation from Asian, Black, Mixed and Other ethnic backgrounds is 4%

Best Global Equality Diversity and Inclusion Orgs (1)
• *as rated by Forbes, Fortune, Great Places to Work as the most diverse
companies and companies that embrace diversity

• Accenture – Let there be change ‘Inclusion starts with I’ https://youtu.be/2g88Ju6nkcg
Page 35

• Accenture has 624,000 employees. More than 275,000 are women. 50% of the board directors and
27% of their global management are women
• 60% of Accenture’s board of directors are racially and ethnically diverse: They’ve added more than
25,000 people of diverse backgrounds, they’ve increased the number of Asian American and Asian
executives by 3.6%
• 4.5% of Accenture’s workforce identify as disabled and since 2019 the people identifying as
LGBTQ increased by 0.5 percentage points and those classed as non-binary has increased from 35
to 44 in 2020
• Accenture has made strides including people of all backgrounds and ethnicities to become a more
inclusive company and aim to achieve a complete 50/50 workforce gender representation

Best Global Equality Diversity and Inclusion Orgs (1)
• *as rated by Forbes, Fortune, Great Places to Work as the most diverse
companies and companies that embrace diversity

• Diageo - championing inclusion and diversity
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V0t7VrsCITM&feature=emb_imp_woyt
Page 36

• Diageo has 27,783 employees
• In November 2020, Diageo announced a ‘Society 2030: Spirit of Progress’ ten-year sustainability
plan which included the goal to have 50% female representation across leadership positions by
2030, on 9 September 2021 Diageo were proud to announce that, 60% of their board and 38% of
their Executive Committee are women
• 50% of their board and 40% of their Executive Committee are women

Best global equality diversity and inclusion orgs (2)
• *as rated by Forbes, Fortune, Great Places to Work as the most diverse companies and
companies that embrace diversity

• Thomson Reuters has more than 25,000 employees across the globe and has a 49.91%
female to 50.09% male workforce ratio
Page 37

• Thomson Reuters – EDI Strategy – the power of us’ focusses on 3 pillars;
• Build and nurture and inclusive workplace
• Attract, develop and accelerate diverse talent
• Leverage diversity and inclusion in the marketplace through customers and brand
• All of these high performing companies have equality, diversity and inclusion at the heart
of their organisations, their communications and identity and branding with equal focus
externally across customers and clients, and internally across workforce. Their websites
communicate their culture, drive, and journey.

Our 5 Year plan to increase diversity in senior leadership
•
•

Page 38

•

•

•

6 - 12 months
Continue with and scale up our shared
mentoring and coaching platforms
Promote and support the High Potential
2 Fellowship in terms of offering high
quality placement opportunities and
senior coaching and mentoring across
our system
Creating and sustaining connectivity
through shared system networks,
ongoing collaboration and a shared
approach to recruitment panels
Encouraging new entrants into our
sector; proactively engaging those who
are furthest from work, particularly the
long term and recently unemployed and
targeted recruitment with our black,
Asian and minority ethnic communities
through our inclusive community
recruitment project
Validate District wide EDI plans and
include this level of governance as part
of District wide activity

•

•

•
•

•

1 - 4 years
Create and embed a compassionate ad
inclusive culture where everyone feels
they belong, have a voice and feel
empowered to make a difference
Develop and retain talent within and
across Place, identifying and
developing career pathways,
development opportunities and
passporting arrangements across
organisations and sectors
Succession plans in place that identify
future talent and diverse talent pipelines
Collaborate on system leadership and
management development training –
culture, values, behaviours and
kindness
Develop work on integrated career
pathways into senior roles, e.g. through
secondments, recruitment, and/or
integrated senior leadership teams

Progress first 6 months - our 5 Year plan to increase diversity
n senior leadership
•
•

Page 39

•

•

•

6 - 12 months
Continue with and scale up our shared
mentoring and coaching platforms
Promote and support the High Potential
2 Fellowship in terms of offering high
quality placement opportunities and
senior coaching and mentoring across
our system
Creating and sustaining connectivity
through shared system networks,
ongoing collaboration and a shared
approach to recruitment panels
Encouraging new entrants into our
sector; proactively engaging those who
are furthest from work, particularly the
long term and recently unemployed and
targeted recruitment with our black,
Asian and minority ethnic communities
through our inclusive community
recruitment project
Validate District wide EDI plans and
include this level of governance as part
of District wide activity

•

•

•

•

Progress Update
Series of lived experience and staff
engagement within/across organisations
have had powerful impact on celebrating
difference, learning, and bringing people
together within and across organisations
ICS Staff Network maturity matrix.
Successfully launched new High
Potential Fellowship in 2021. Positive
feedback and impact from previous
cohort. Shadow Board Foundation
Programme launched. REN leading
development of women of colour race
equality leadership board
Ambassadors network continues to
promote careers and pathways across
our Schools, kickstart ambition (over
1000 placements), leaving care
employment programme, learning
disabilities placement programme
Draft job description for jointly partner
funded system EDI role, propose the role
supports delivery across EG.

Our impact to date
• We know the importance of lived experience and culture and have made progress on staff
engagement and lived experience
• Our data is showing some positive progress
• We have worked through governance, and aligned across Place (EG, West Yorkshire and
Harrogate Partnership ICS, HRDs etc…) and brought the HRD system leadership 5 year
plan and EG leadership strands together
Page 40

• We are on a journey, that is both qualitative and qualitative, there is more to do, and our
important work continues
• Here is an example of the impact as a consequence of talent development though our
West Yorkshire and Harrogate Fellowship Programme :• Link to video from fellowship

Our impact to date
• We know the importance of lived experience and culture and have made progress on staff
engagement and lived experience
• Our data is showing some positive progress
• We have worked through governance, and aligned across Place (EG, West Yorkshire and
Harrogate Partnership ICS, HRDs etc…) and brought the HRD system leadership 5 year
plan and EG leadership strands together
Page 41

• We are on a journey, that is both qualitative and qualitative, there is more to do, and our
important work continues
• Here is an example of the impact as a consequence of talent development though our
West Yorkshire and Harrogate Fellowship Programme - Insert link to video from
fellowship

Appendix A – WRES National Actions 2020

Page 42

These slides show the 2020 WRES Areas for action nationally and the
Best performing organisations by WRES indicator.

Page 43

Page 44

